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       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 8.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Good morning, everyone.

       5                 MR. MOYLE:  Good morning.

       6                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Good morning.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I am glad that everybody's

       8       here this morning and looking healthy.

       9                 I want to go over a few small little details,

      10       as we did last week.  Let you know that we will be

      11       taking a five-minute break every two hours for the court

      12       reporter so she can rest her little fingers.  We're

      13       probably going to shoot for taking lunch between

      14       1:00 and 1:30, so if you guys could plan accordingly.

      15       And if you're interested in eating lunch on site, we'll

      16       have the, the Internal Affairs room open over here

      17       next-door, or you can go upstairs to Room 234, and

      18       there's plenty of table and seats up there.

      19                 If this does go to Friday, we plan on ending

      20       Friday probably about 1:00, 1:30 as well, so everybody

      21       can go and take care of what else you need to do,

      22       whatever you didn't do all week long, and then you can

      23       enjoy your weekend.

      24                 And there's one last thing I want to remind

      25       everybody of, and I'm sure Mr. Baldwyn over there knows
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       1       exactly what this is, if you can reach down and make

       2       sure your phone is on silent or vibrate so we can move

       3       forward accordingly.

       4                 That all being said, we will officially

       5       reconvene the hearing.  It's Docket Number 110009-EI.

       6       And that all being said, I think -- preliminary matters.

       7       Staff.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Good morning, Commissioners.

       9                 Staff will note that the parties have a

      10       proposed stipulation they would like to present to the

      11       Commission before beginning the Progress Energy portion,

      12       Progress Energy Florida portion of the hearing, of this

      13       proceeding.

      14                 The proposed stipulation is attached as

      15       Attachment 1 to the script, and the effects of the

      16       approval of the stipulation, of the remaining issues, is

      17       attached as Attachment 2.

      18                 Also, you have a, you should have received a

      19       sheet labeled Proposed Stipulations that lists, that

      20       lists Progress's draft preliminary issues, that lists

      21       Progress's draft preliminary issues on the -- positions,

      22       excuse me, on the issues.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  I guess we'll go with

      24       OPC, Mr. Rehwinkel.

      25                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Take appearances?
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We'll do that first.

       2       We'll take appearances first.  Let's see who's here.

       3       Somebody.

       4                 MR. BURNETT:  Good morning, sir.  John Burnett

       5       for Progress Energy Florida, and with me I have Alex

       6       Glenn, Mike Walls, and Blaise Huhta.

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

       8       Commissioners.  Jamie Whitlock on behalf of the Southern

       9       Alliance for Clean Energy.  Thank you.

      10                 MR. MOYLE:  Good morning.  On behalf of the

      11       Florida Industrial Power Users, FIPUG, Jon Moyle.

      12                 MS. WHITE:  Good morning.  I'm Karen White on

      13       behalf of Federal Executive Agencies.

      14                 MR. BREW:  Good morning.  For White Springs

      15       Agricultural Chemicals, PCS Phosphate, I'm James Brew,

      16       and also with me is F. Alvin Taylor.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Good morning.  Charles

      18       Rehwinkel and Erik Sayler, Office of Public Counsel, on

      19       behalf of the customers of Florida.

      20                 MR. YOUNG:  Keino Young and Anna R. Norris on

      21       behalf of Commission staff.

      22                 MS. HELTON:  And Mary Anne Helton, Advisor to

      23       the Commission.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Rehwinkel.

      25                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
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       1       thank you, Commissioners.

       2                 We would like to thank the Commissioners --

       3       and I say we -- I think all of the parties would like to

       4       thank the Commissioners for the additional time to work

       5       on stipulating a significant part of the case.  The

       6       weekend proved to be beneficial for that, and what we

       7       have reached will take the CR3 aspects of the case out

       8       and allow us to focus on the Levy nuclear project.

       9                 The stipulation that you have before you

      10       encompasses several things.  The first one is Item 1 on

      11       what you should have before you, which is that Progress,

      12       in compromise in settlement, agrees to permanently forgo

      13       collection of $500,000 in project management costs,

      14       which is a resolution of Issue 31.  And all the parties

      15       have accepted that and agree to it.

      16                 The adjustment is intended to be recognized in

      17       this year's order, but the full revenue requirement

      18       effect will be reflected as a true-up in the March 2012

      19       MFRs.  The impact on the bottom line on the factor, we

      20       believe, is, is not material, such that the effort it

      21       would take to revise these schedules is necessary.  And

      22       I think the Staff and all the parties are in agreement

      23       on that.

      24                 Item Number 2 is the, relates to Issue 33, and

      25       for 2009 and 2010 CR3 uprate costs.  The parties do not
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       1       object to the Commission taking the final prudent --

       2       making a final prudence determination for these costs

       3       pursuant to the NCRC statutes, specifically 366.93 and

       4       403.519(4).  And we don't object to that being done in

       5       this docket this year.

       6                 The reservation of rights aspect of this is

       7       that in so agreeing, the parties maintain and do not

       8       waive, concede, or give up their right to offer any

       9       testimony in any other FPSC docket, nor do they waive,

      10       concede, or give up any remedy at law that may exist in

      11       any other docket.

      12                 Finally -- those are the two substantive

      13       stipulations by the parties.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let me --

      15                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let me make sure that we

      17       have everybody on board on the record before we move on

      18       past that point.

      19                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.

      20                 MR. BREW:  Mr. Chairman, PCS Phosphate is

      21       agreeable to the stipulation as described.

      22                 MS. WHITE:  FEA agrees.

      23                 MR. MOYLE:  FIPUG is okay.

      24                 MR. WHITLOCK:  SACE agrees, Mr. Chairman.

      25                 MR. BURNETT:  Progress agrees as well, sir.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff is -- Staff agrees.

       3                 But if Mr. Rehwinkel, and I think Mr. Whitlock

       4       can -- I think Mr. Whitlock, this was his reservation of

       5       rights he was concerned about.  If he can -- if you can

       6       poll him for his interpretation of what that means, I

       7       think, for the record I think it would be a lot cleaner

       8       than just saying they agree to that.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Whitlock?

      10                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Sure.  Thank you, Mr. Young.

      11                 I was -- I did request that that language be

      12       added in, and thank all the parties for working over the

      13       weekend on putting that language in.

      14                 My concern and SACE's concern specifically

      15       relates to the delamination, the ongoing delamination

      16       docket.  I am not personally serving as counsel for SACE

      17       in that docket and won't sit here and represent that I

      18       know the ins and outs of that docket as well as others

      19       here do.

      20                 However, what I did want to -- out of an

      21       abundance of caution, I did want to make sure that, to

      22       the extent there is any overlap in the '09 and '010

      23       costs, which the parties are not objecting to the

      24       Commission making a final prudence determination

      25       pursuant to the nuclear cost recovery statute and rule,
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       1       that that could not somehow be used against any party to

       2       offer any testimony or, you know, or waive any remedy

       3       that they might have in the delamination docket.

       4                 So, and I think the language is written pretty

       5       narrowly, limiting, you know, the finding of prudence to

       6       the nuclear cost recovery statutes.  And, therefore, you

       7       know, I just, I don't see it causing a problem.  And

       8       again, you know, we just ask for this out of an

       9       abundance of caution.

      10                 So I don't know -- Keino, does that answer

      11       your question?

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  That does.  If we can have the

      13       Intervenors and Progress Energy Florida acquiesce or

      14       state whether they agree or disagree with Mr. Whitlock's

      15       interpretation.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's do this polling again.

      17                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

      18                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Public

      19       Counsel agrees.  We believe that your decision in this

      20       docket pursuant to the first sentence in Item 2 has no

      21       impact -- it is what it is, and you're not making a

      22       decision that -- well, let me just state this.  I agree

      23       with Mr. Whitlock.

      24                 (Laughter.)

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I like it.  You're learning
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       1       my way.

       2                 MR. BREW:  Mr. Chairman, while I would also

       3       like to restate the issues, I'm just going to say that

       4       we agree with Mr. Whitlock.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       6                 MS. WHITE:  As will I.  FEA agrees with SACE.

       7                 MR. MOYLE:  FIPUG agrees.

       8                 MR. BURNETT:  I also agree with Mr. Whitlock's

       9       characterizations, sir.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      11                 Mr. Young.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff agrees with Mr. Whitlock,

      13       but wants to expand.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You just what?

      15                 MR. YOUNG:  We're just concerned, and Progress

      16       may want to speak to this too, is that a decision on the

      17       prudently incurred costs in this docket, administrative,

      18       whether administrative finality attaches or not.  And

      19       Staff believes possibly that administrative finality

      20       attaches.

      21                 We understand that Mr. Whitlock is reserving

      22       his rights to any other -- if there is possibly any

      23       other statute outside of 366.93 and 403, that he may

      24       argue that -- and he may argue that statute or that law

      25       or that case.  And any remedies that flow from that, he
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       1       has the rights, he reserves that right.

       2                 And if that's the correct interpretation, if

       3       they can, all the parties can agree to that, then we're

       4       comfortable with moving forward on this, on this issue

       5       and proceeding with the hearing.

       6                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, that certainly is

       7       the correct characterization, and again was why we

       8       framed it and limited that first sentence to just the

       9       Section 366.93 and the 403.519.  So that would be an

      10       accurate characterization.  Thank you.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's make this simple.  Who

      12       doesn't agree?

      13                 MR. MOYLE:  I just have a point, that if I

      14       understand where we are, it sounds like the parties have

      15       agreed that, as discussed and outlined, administrative

      16       finality, you know, may not attach because we have an

      17       agreement that's been articulated and everybody has

      18       agreed to.  So, you know, I think that speaks for

      19       itself.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I was getting back to you.

      21       Don't worry.

      22                 (Laughter.)

      23                 So is there agreement on this side?

      24                 MR. REHWINKEL:  The Public Counsel agrees with

      25       the way Mr. Whitlock characterized it, and we agree, and
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       1       we agree with what the Staff said.

       2                 Just to be clear, you're making a decision in

       3       this docket, and your decision in this docket under the

       4       statute -- there's finality language in the statute, and

       5       it applies to your determinations.  If there are other

       6       remedies that exist and other theories about damages

       7       that might come into play in another docket, by

       8       voluntarily agreeing to allow the Commission to make a

       9       determination in this docket about 2009 and 2010 costs,

      10       we do not want someone to say that you, because you

      11       voluntarily agreed in that docket, you cannot now raise

      12       something you otherwise could have wholly independent of

      13       366.93 and 403.519.

      14                 And I think that's all it says.  And so we

      15       don't have to debate administrative finality or anything

      16       like that here today.  Finality -- you're, you're going

      17       to be operating entirely within 366.93 and 403.519, and

      18       we recognize that.  I hope that is clear.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I see everybody nodding

      20       their head.  Progress.

      21                 MR. BURNETT:  Thank you, sir.

      22                 We, I think we agree with what Mr. Rehwinkel

      23       said.  And just to be abundantly clear now, since we've

      24       had this discussion, we've talked about this a lot and

      25       we actually had one example I think that really makes it
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       1       perfectly clear.  So we certainly believe that

       2       administrative finality attaches fully to your decision

       3       today with respect to the NCRC costs.

       4                 So the question of whether it was reasonable

       5       and prudent to incur these '09 and '10 costs in the

       6       realm of this project before the evidence of this NCRC,

       7       that will be decided.  And absent active concealment or

       8       misrepresentation that's in the statute, those are final

       9       forever.

      10                 Now that being said, if, for instance, in the

      11       delamination docket someone makes an appropriate

      12       argument to say that, although those costs were

      13       reasonable and prudent to be incurred to move the

      14       project forward, because of something that happened in

      15       delam, those costs were more than they should have been,

      16       and they can show an unbroken, proximate, and actual

      17       cause and a proper measure of damages, they're not

      18       barred from making that argument.  And if an imprudence

      19       determination is made, those costs would be subject to

      20       refund.

      21                 So that's a good example, I think, that's

      22       helped us put some concrete around this, and I think

      23       that's what we're agreeing here -- certainly that's what

      24       Progress is agreeing to.

      25                 MR. YOUNG:  And Staff -- with that
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       1       clarification, Staff feels very, very comfortable moving

       2       forward.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So there's no but this time?

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  There's no but.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Now that I have

       6       everybody on board, let's go to the Commission board,

       7       and we'll do these first two parts of the stipulation

       8       before we go back and finish the rest of this.

       9                 Commissioner Balbis.

      10                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      11                 I just have a point to make on the second

      12       proposed stipulation that was discussed, and Staff can

      13       confirm this.  And I kind of hesitate to make the

      14       statement because everyone is in agreement, but I just

      15       want to point out that --

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, then don't do it.

      17                 (Laughter.)

      18                 COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  But I already pressed

      19       the button, so I just -- I just want to point out that

      20       we're addressing the proposed stipulation.  If we do not

      21       agree to the stipulation, we're going to be in the same

      22       place in October when we vote on the prudency or

      23       imprudency of this, so I think it's kind of a moot

      24       point, and if Staff can confirm that.  But, again, I'm

      25       in agreement with the stipulation, but I think there's a
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       1       lot of discussion maybe for not.

       2                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, Commissioner, you're correct.

       3       If, if the proposed stipulation is not accepted today,

       4       Staff would bring forth a recommendation to you as

       5       relates to the 2009, 2010 prudently incurred costs, and

       6       I think that was Issue 32, excuse me, Issue 31, Issue

       7       32, and 33 encompassing all those.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So, Commission board,

       9       we are dealing with number 1 and number 2 under the

      10       proposed stipulation.

      11                 And I guess the question I have is if there's

      12       any concerns or if we are agreeable and want to move

      13       forward with the stipulation.

      14                 Commissioner Brown, followed by Commissioner

      15       Edgar.

      16                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      17       Pardon my voice.  I lost it last week.

      18                 But I guess I just want clarification, we're

      19       voting to -- or to approve Issue 31 for those two

      20       stipulations; is that correct?

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I believe it's 31, 32, and

      22       33.

      23                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Okay. I did want to make

      24       a comment regarding Issue 31, and I appreciate the

      25       parties addressing that particular language regarding
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       1       retaining their right to offer additional testimony.

       2       And it really, that was really my biggest concern was

       3       having clarity.  And I appreciate and I would support

       4       the proposed stipulations.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Edgar.

       6                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, I would

       7       move that we approve the stipulations before us in light

       8       of the discussion that we have had here this morning for

       9       Issues 31 and Issue 32.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We're approving number 1 and

      11       number 2 on the Attachment Number 1?

      12                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, for clarity

      13       for me, I would suggest that we look to the three-page

      14       document that is titled Proposed Stipulations.  And then

      15       it says, Issue 31, and then lays out in bold the

      16       positions as agreed to by Progress, OPC, SACE, FEA,

      17       FIPUG, and PCS.

      18                 And so for my motion I would incorporate this

      19       language for Issue 31 and Issue 32.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  What about Issue 33?

      21                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I thought you wanted to

      22       take that separately.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No.  What we're doing was

      24       covering Issue 31, 32, and 33.

      25                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Then if the other
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       1       Commissioners are ready to move forward, I am, and I

       2       would include Issue 33 as also incorporate -- described

       3       on this same document.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Brown.

       5                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

       6                 I just have one question for Staff regarding

       7       Issue 33 and those costs, and whether Staff has had an

       8       opportunity -- I'm sure you have, but I just want to

       9       make that clear for the record -- to look at these costs

      10       and make sure that they are prudent and reasonable with

      11       regard to the CR3 uprate project.

      12                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, we have.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Very good, Mr. Young.

      14                 COMMISSIONER BROWN:  Then I would support --

      15       with that, I would support Commissioner Edgar's motion.

      16                 MS. HUHTA:  Chairman, if I may?

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

      18                 MS. HUHTA:  On Issue 33, my understanding from

      19       Staff is that that capital cost system number for 2009

      20       could change somewhat based on the, the proposed

      21       stipulation in Issue 31.  That calculation had not been

      22       run until this morning, as the stipulation occurred over

      23       the weekend.  So the actual numbers listed there could

      24       change, none of the substantive wording.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You're talking about the
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       1       system?

       2                 MS. HUHTA:  Yes.  2009 capital cost system

       3       numbers listed under Issue 33.

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  I think if -- Ms. Huhta can

       5       correct me if I'm wrong -- I think that would be a

       6       reduction by $500,000 based on the stipulation of 31.

       7                 MS. HUHTA:  I think that that is correct, yes.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now "I think," is that a

       9       legal term?

      10                 MR. YOUNG:  And that's the, that's the

      11       $118,140,493, and that will be reduced by 500,000.

      12                 MS. HUHTA:  The new number would be

      13       117,640,493.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Young, agreeable?

      15                 MR. YOUNG:  If the math is right, yes.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  The math is right.

      17                 MR. YOUNG:  I think the math is right.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So, Commissioner

      19       Edgar.

      20                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      21                 I just wanted to make sure that I am clear

      22       then, and look to Progress first, and then I'll come

      23       back to our Staff, if I, if I may.

      24                 So my understanding of the stipulations that

      25       have been agreed to by all the parties and that are
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       1       before us is that using this same document to adopt

       2       31 and 32 and 33, the reduction of 500,000 in project

       3       management costs, as included in Issue 31, would then be

       4       what would trigger the change in the number under

       5       capital cost system 2009 for Issue 33.

       6                 MS. HUHTA:  Yes, that's correct.  And there

       7       would also be a slight change in the jurisdictional

       8       costs on that second line.  The 87,458,545 would reduce

       9       to 87,028,310.

      10                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Could you do the

      11       87 million number again for me, please?

      12                 MS. HUHTA:  Certainly.  The new 87 million

      13       number would be 87,028,310.

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, I think

      15       what I, what I would like to do, if you can just give me

      16       a little, a little flexibility on this as we're moving

      17       forward, what, what I would suggest, if I may revise my

      18       motion and go back to where I was before, because I

      19       would like to make sure that I'm clear on the numbers

      20       and that the Staff are clear on the numbers and that

      21       everybody agrees to the numbers.

      22                 My initial understanding was that the numbers

      23       on Issue 33 had already reflected, since I see the

      24       stipulations, you know, as, as parts of a whole, that

      25       that had already been incorporated.
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       1                 So what I would like to do, if you'll give me

       2       that leeway, Mr. Chairman, is make the motion that we

       3       approve the proposed stipulations for Issues 31 and 32,

       4       and then, as I was initially heading, that we hold off

       5       on 33 and have a little bit more discussion on that.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We've admitted the

       7       motion to approve Issue 31 and 32 as stipulated.  Any

       8       further discussion on 31 and 32?  If not, all in favor,

       9       say aye.

      10                 (Ayes unanimous.)

      11                 Any opposed?

      12                 (No response.)

      13                 By your action, you've approved Issue 31 and

      14       32 as stipulated.

      15                 Commissioner Edgar.

      16                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      17                 I would like to ask to begin with Progress and

      18       then go down the line with the parties and come back to

      19       Staff to know, in light of the approvals of Issues 31

      20       and Issue 32, what changes, if any, are required to the

      21       document that is before me for Issue 33.

      22                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Progress?

      23                 MS. HUHTA:  Certainly, Commissioner.

      24                 On, under Issue 33 of the proposed stipulation

      25       document you have in front of you, under what system and
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       1       jurisdictional amount should the Commission approve as

       2       PEF's 2009 and 2010 prudently incurred costs for the

       3       CR3 uprate project, under PEF position, 2009 capital

       4       cost system, that number should be revised to 118 -- or,

       5       sorry, 117,640,493.  Under jurisdictional net of joint

       6       owners, that number should be revised to 87,028,310.

       7                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Any other changes?

       8                 MS. HUHTA:  No, Commissioner.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  Can I look to all

      10       the Intervenor parties?  Is there consensus on those

      11       numbers?

      12                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes.  Public Counsel agrees

      13       with those numbers.

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  Is there

      15       anybody who does not?

      16                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Commissioner Edgar, I do have

      17       one -- I'm fine with the numbers.  I do have one comment

      18       on the position of the parties entered at the bottom of

      19       the page there when, when you're ready to hear that.

      20                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  If I can just look

      21       to Staff then for confirmation and agreement of those,

      22       the revised numbers in light of the adoption of

      23       stipulations on 31 and 32.

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  Commissioner, it's my

      25       understanding that Staff, these numbers, the numbers are

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1347

       1       correct in terms of, in light of the stipulation and

       2       reduction of $500,000.

       3                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Then, Mr. Chairman, if I

       4       may, I'd look to the parties, starting with SACE, to see

       5       if there's any other comments or discussion on proposed

       6       stipulation Issue 33.

       7                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Commissioner Edgar.

       8                 Just so we're entirely clear, under Issue 33,

       9       under the position of the parties, I think on the second

      10       line there into the first line it says, "The parties do

      11       not object to the Commission making a final prudence

      12       determination for those costs."  I think it would be

      13       clearer if it said "for 2009 and 2010 CR3 EPU costs,"

      14       instead of "those."  And again, that's just --

      15                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  And it took me a

      16       moment to find where, the place that you were directing

      17       us to.  I think I found it now.  So if you could do that

      18       suggested language one more time.

      19                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Sure.  Instead of the "those

      20       costs" on the end of the second sentence in the parties'

      21       position, I think it should say "2009 and 2010 CR3 EPU

      22       costs."

      23                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I read that as a

      24       nonsubstantive clarification, and that makes sense to

      25       me.
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       1                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Absolutely.

       2                 MR. REHWINKEL:  That's correct.  It takes the

       3       clause at the beginning of the stipulation and puts it

       4       in there.  That's, that's fine.

       5                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Then, Mr. Chairman, with

       6       those changes, which I'm glad to read through, if

       7       necessary, when you are ready, I'd be prepared to make a

       8       motion on Issue 33.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think we're ready for that

      10       motion.

      11                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  Then, Mr.

      12       Chairman, I would propose that we approve the

      13       stipulation for Issue 33, recognizing the revised

      14       numbers under the 2009 capital cost systems and the

      15       jurisdictional net of joint owners, and also making the

      16       change at the bottom as suggested by SACE, specifying

      17       that the term "those costs" refers to the 2009, 2010

      18       CR3 EPU costs.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It's been moved and

      20       seconded, that change to Issue 33.  Any further

      21       discussion?  Seeing none, all in favor, say aye.

      22                 (Ayes unanimous.)

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any opposed?

      24                 (No response.)

      25                 By your action, you have approved Issue 33 as
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       1       stated.

       2                 Okay.  Mr. Rehwinkel --

       3                 MR. MOYLE:  Mr. Chairman, just housekeeping.

       4       I assume this will be identified and placed into the

       5       record so we'll have a copy of what the stipulation was.

       6       Is that the intention?

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Hopefully.

       8                 Mr. Rehwinkel, you were walking us through the

       9       stipulation.

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.

      11       And I appreciate the vote that you just took.  It took

      12       some time, but it was worth it because, because of your

      13       vote, the remaining items on this list are now possible.

      14       Because without those stipulations, we would have had to

      15       bring the witnesses forward and have testimony and

      16       cross-examination.

      17                 So item number 3 is that the parties agree

      18       that PEF will not offer Jon Franke's May 2nd direct

      19       testimony or his July 5th rebuttal testimony or, and the

      20       exhibits related to those testimonies into this

      21       proceeding.

      22                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, before we get there,

      23       if we can just go back a second in terms of what

      24       Mr. Moyle --

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  No.  I'm sorry.  Go ahead.
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  In terms of what Mr. Moyle said, I

       2       think it would be a seamless transaction if we move the

       3       stipulation into the record, as he requested, move the

       4       stipulation, identify it, mark it, and move it into the

       5       record now.  Then move with any other witnesses that are

       6       going to be excused or proceed with the further, proceed

       7       with the hearing.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So when we just now approved

       9       Issue 31, 32, 33, now after we approve that, we have to

      10       move that into the record?

      11                 MR. YOUNG:  It's what he requested in terms of

      12       moving it into the record, and I think this would be the

      13       appropriate time to move it into the record before you

      14       proceed with talking about any other witnesses, thus, it

      15       will be, I think it would be a more seamless

      16       transaction.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Once again, what exactly am

      18       I moving into the record?

      19                 MR. YOUNG:  The proposed stipulation.

      20       Proposed stipulation.  It's a sheet that you have.  And

      21       we can identify it as Number 203.

      22                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, this

      23       document that --

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Wait, wait, wait.  Now what

      25       I thought we were doing was I was going to let
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       1       Mr. Rehwinkel walk us through the proposed stipulation,

       2       and then we were going to push it all into the record

       3       after he walked us through and made sure that everybody

       4       was on board.

       5                 MR. YOUNG:  I think by your vote today, by

       6       your vote just now, everyone is on board.  But I would

       7       defer to you.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       9                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      11                 So Mr. Franke's two pieces of testimony and

      12       exhibits will, will not be admitted, as I said.  The

      13       remaining witnesses in the case will be Foster,

      14       Elnitsky, and Jacobs.  And Mr. Foster will present

      15       direct and rebuttal at the same time, but, pursuant to

      16       agreement among the parties, he will not be subject to

      17       being excused until Mr. Elnitsky has finished his direct

      18       testimony.

      19                 We have distributed to all the parties a

      20       public version of the July 21, 2011, deposition and

      21       exhibits of Staff Witnesses Coston and Carpenter.  And,

      22       with the admission of that deposition and their

      23       testimony, those Staff witnesses are stipulated by the

      24       parties.

      25                 And then the final piece of the stipulation is
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       1       that the order of witnesses will be Mr. Foster on direct

       2       and rebuttal, Mr. Elnitsky on direct, Mr. Jacobs,

       3       Dr. Jacobs on direct, and then Mr. Elnitsky on rebuttal.

       4       And, as a consequence, Will Garrett, Jon Franke, Sue

       5       Hardison, William Coston, Kevin Carpenter, and Jeffery

       6       Small are all stipulated and their testimony and any

       7       exhibits are admitted into the record without being

       8       present at the hearing.  Jon Franke's testimony would be

       9       his March 1st testimony.

      10                 And that is the remainder of the stipulation

      11       that is, that is made possible by the Commission's

      12       approval of items 1 and 2.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Let's make sure that

      14       everybody is on board with that Attachment 1, those

      15       stipulations as stated by Mr. Rehwinkel.

      16                 MR. BREW:  PCS Phosphate agrees.

      17                 MS. WHITE:  FEA agrees.

      18                 MR. MOYLE:  FIPUG agrees.

      19                 MR. WHITLOCK:  SACE agrees.

      20                 MR. BURNETT:  And PEF agrees.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Young?

      22                 MS. NORRIS:  And Staff agrees as well.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

      24                 Commission board?

      25                 Commissioner Edgar.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Chairman, I think

       2       looking at the document that is headed Attachment 1,

       3       Proposed Stipulation, that Mr. Rehwinkel has described

       4       to us, that by adopting proposed stipulations for Issues

       5       31, 32, and 33, that we have concurred with issue, with

       6       items 1 and 2, and at the appropriate time I would

       7       suggest that we use the document marked Proposed

       8       Stipulations with the changes that we adopted, note it

       9       and mark it as Number 203 for the record.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      11                 (Exhibit 203 marked for identification.)

      12                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Mr. Chairman, as a

      13       housekeeping matter, we should probably identify the

      14       stipulated hearing exhibit of the Coston/Carpenter

      15       deposition as an exhibit, if now would be the right time

      16       for that.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And where is that exhibit?

      18       That's this one.  Okay.  We will mark that as

      19       Exhibit 204.

      20                 (Exhibit 204 marked for identification.)

      21                 And what would be the short title for that

      22       exhibit?

      23                 MR. REHWINKEL:  I think Coston/Carpenter

      24       Deposition is, is good.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We will enter

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1354

       1       Exhibits 203 and 204 into the record.

       2                 (Exhibits 203 and 204 admitted into evidence.)

       3                 Anything else on the proposed stipulations

       4       before us?  Okay.  So we will enter those proposed

       5       stipulations into the record.

       6                 Now what happens here with Attachment 2,

       7       Mr. Young?

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  Attachment 2, with your vote on

       9       Issues 31, 32, and 33, we now move to the remaining

      10       highlighted issues.

      11                 After the hearing, Staff will write a

      12       recommendation on the following highlighted issues, and

      13       they're all Levy issues, plus Issues 36 and 37, which is

      14       the rate management plan issue, and the amount to,

      15       amount to be transferred for collections in the 2012

      16       NCRC factor.

      17                 And with that, Mr. Chairman, I think we can

      18       proceed with other preliminary matters as we move along.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  So now you're going

      20       to have to explain to me what all that means.

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, that is just for

      22       advisement purposes only.  It's nothing that you need to

      23       enter.  It's just letting you know what you voted on and

      24       the issues that remain for discussion and cross -- well,

      25       for the witnesses to present testimony and
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       1       cross-examination.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So you're saying that we're

       3       ready for opening statements now?

       4                 MR. YOUNG:  Almost.  But before we get to

       5       opening statements, Staff has preliminary matters.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Then you have the

       7       floor, Mr. Young.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  All right.

       9                 The first preliminary matter, Staff

      10       Comprehensive Exhibit List that was marked for

      11       identification purposes as Exhibit Number 1, Staff will

      12       ask that the stipulated exhibits which are included

      13       throughout the Comprehensive Exhibit List be entered

      14       into the record after opening statements, or at the

      15       Chairman's pleasure.

      16                 Staff will request also that the comprehensive

      17       exhibits that Staff -- excuse me.  Staff would request

      18       that the comprehensive exhibits and Staff exhibits be

      19       marked and numbered in the Comprehensive Exhibit List,

      20       and that any other exhibits proffered during the hearing

      21       be numbered sequentially following those listed in the

      22       Staff Comprehensive Exhibit List, and this is similar to

      23       what we did in the FPL's portion of the docket.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      25                 MR. YOUNG:  And those, for identification
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       1       purposes, Mr. Chairman, is Numbers 174 to 182.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  174 to 182?

       3                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And we're going to enter

       5       that after opening statements?

       6                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       8                 MR. YOUNG:  As relates to the stipulated

       9       witnesses, prefiled testimony and exhibits, Staff

      10       recommends that the stipulated witnesses and prefiled

      11       testimony and exhibits be taken up in turn as the

      12       witnesses are called.  And, as Mr. Rehwinkel just

      13       mentioned, there are several stipulated witnesses based

      14       on the approved stipulations.

      15                 At the time Staff would request that the

      16       testimony of the stipulated witness be inserted into the

      17       record as though read, and the stipulated exhibits of

      18       that witness be moved -- and the stipulated exhibits of

      19       that witness be moved into the record.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

      21                 MR. YOUNG:  Now, Mr. Chairman, I think we are

      22       ready for opening statements.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.

      24                 MR. YOUNG:  Staff would note that opening

      25       statements, if any, shall not exceed ten minutes per
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       1       party for PEF's petition.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now are we ready?

       3                 MR. YOUNG:  We're ready.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Progress, please.

       5                 MR. BURNETT:  Thank you, sir, and good

       6       morning.

       7                 Commissioners, you have four things that

       8       you're charged to decide today in this docket under the

       9       governing statute and rules.  Number one, the prudence

      10       of the Levy 2010 costs; number two, the prudence of the

      11       project management contracting and accounting controls;

      12       number three, the reasonableness of the Levy 2011 and

      13       2012 estimated and projected costs; number four, the

      14       reasonableness of the long-term feasibility analysis for

      15       Levy.

      16                 The good news is no witnesses challenge any of

      17       these, and the evidence on all of these are undisputed.

      18       The proof to that?  Listen to Dr. Jacobs when we

      19       cross-examine him and read the testimony.

      20                 Two issues remain for you to decide.  The

      21       first is legally and factually improper, and the second

      22       amounts to nothing more than a series of distractions.

      23                 First, the Intervenors improperly ask you to

      24       limit PEF's recovery of costs this year to only those

      25       costs needed to obtain the combined operating license
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       1       for the Levy plants.  In plain English, they suggest

       2       that you should ignore the fact that all of our non-COLA

       3       costs this year are undisputedly reasonable and prudent,

       4       and instead ask you to arbitrarily limit cost recovery

       5       to only those licensing costs.  Again, the proof of

       6       that?  Listen to Dr. Jacobs during his cross and read

       7       the testimony.

       8                 The simple fact, Commissioners, is while the

       9       Intervenors encourage you to limit cost recovery to

      10       those COLA only costs, as they call them, in

      11       contravention to the Florida Statutes and your NCRC

      12       rule, that's a distraction for the fact that no witness

      13       will testify that one penny of cost sought for recovery

      14       is unreasonable or imprudent.  Thus, you should reject

      15       this request to ignore the controlling law and the facts

      16       of this case.

      17                 Next, Intervenors will tell you that PEF has

      18       no intention to build the Levy units.  The problem with

      19       that is that the only Intervenor, the only Intervenor

      20       witness that will testify in this case cannot prove it.

      21       Dr. Jacobs will tell you in cross-examination that he

      22       does not dispute the fact that Progress Energy Florida

      23       has a present intent to build the Levy plant.

      24       Dr. Jacobs will also tell you that he doesn't believe

      25       that we should cancel the Levy plant.
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       1                 This is where the credible evidence ends and

       2       the distractions will begin.  This is not the first time

       3       that the Intervenors have used this tactic of a litany

       4       of distractions.  We and some of you on the Commission

       5       have actually heard these same arguments since the Levy

       6       need proceeding and every year after that.

       7                 I anticipate you will hear that nuclear plants

       8       cost a lot of money.  Correct, they do.  I anticipate

       9       you will hear that nuclear plants take a long time to

      10       build.  Correct, they do.  I anticipate that you will

      11       here that the nuclear cost recovery statute is unfair.

      12       Not correct, but, again, something that we hear every

      13       year.  These sound bites, again, are nothing more than

      14       distractions.

      15                 You heard in the FP&L case several days ago,

      16       and may hear again today, that customers will pay money

      17       for the Levy plant before a single megawatt of energy is

      18       produced.  Correct.  We have not yet found a way to get

      19       megawatts out of plants that aren't built yet.

      20                 You will also hear that customers have to pay

      21       for the Levy units if they're canceled.  Correct.  That

      22       is an unremarkable proposition that has existed since

      23       the beginning of modern regulatory law.  There's not

      24       been a single project that I'm aware of in Florida ever

      25       that has been prudently canceled where the customers
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       1       didn't pay.  Again, unremarkable facts that are a

       2       distraction.

       3                 The biggest distraction you will hear this

       4       year are documents that OPC will show you that they will

       5       say contend that we have moved the in-service dates, or

       6       at least plan to move the in-service dates for the Levy

       7       project to 2026 and 2027.  What these documents are are

       8       a series of environmental what-if scenarios that the

       9       company performed to think about how PEF could

      10       potentially respond to a myriad of environmental

      11       regulations, and, again, what-if scenarios.

      12                 The Levy units play a very small part in this,

      13       and, in fact, most of the presentations, all four of

      14       them, deal with nonnuclear units, and even units in the

      15       Carolinas.  What's the proof of that?  Read them.  OPC

      16       will show you some snippets, some tidbits, single pages.

      17       That's fine.  Read the whole documents, and then see

      18       what they look like in context.  Read the comments where

      19       they say, we're not picking a scenario, we're not

      20       planning for this.  This is blue sky, what-if scenarios.

      21                 Listen carefully to Dr. Jacobs, Mr. Elnitsky,

      22       and your own Staff audit report.  That evidence will

      23       show that the plan of record that Progress Energy

      24       Florida has is to put the Levy units in service on

      25       schedule for a 2021 and 2022 in-service date.
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       1       Dr. Jacobs will not and cannot disagree with that fact.

       2       All he will tell you is that these documents show a

       3       wavering intent to go forward with the Levy case, but he

       4       will not tell you that we have moved the in-service

       5       date, nor will he dispute the factual evidence that show

       6       that the current in-service date is what's approved by

       7       management.  Audit Staff acknowledges the same in their

       8       report.  They, they actually make reference to the March

       9       2011 IPP where our management approved the current

      10       in-service date for Levy.

      11                 OPC may also try to convince you that why

      12       would a utility ever do these sort of planning scenarios

      13       unless they had some sort of evil intent, or this was

      14       some sort of mischievous plan for Levy.  Well, shame on

      15       us if we didn't do this, if we put blinders on and said,

      16       we're not going to plan for the future and we're not

      17       going to do what-ifs, we're just going to go forward and

      18       not think about this.  Shame on us if we don't do this.

      19                 Also, our Ten-Year Site Plan we file every

      20       year.  The day after we file that we're thinking, okay,

      21       what if gas changes, what if carbon changes, what if

      22       these units don't come in, what if renewable projects

      23       don't show up, what if they do?  We're doing what-ifs

      24       the day after we file that.  Your Staff takes discovery

      25       on what-ifs with the Ten-Year Site Plan.  In fact,
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       1       they're doing it right now.  That's part of the

       2       business.  With a business like this, you always plan,

       3       but you have your what-if scenarios and then you have

       4       your plan of record.  So I would commend to concentrate

       5       on our plan of record, the only real evidence in this

       6       case.

       7                 The bottom line, Commissioners, is the four

       8       things you must decide this year are undisputed.  This

       9       Commission does not make decisions on distractions and

      10       sound bites, and I'm confident of that.  And I'm

      11       confident that once you hear the evidence, you'll make a

      12       fair determination on that evidence.

      13                 Thank you for your time.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

      15                 Which Intervenor wants to go first?

      16                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

      17                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

      18       Commissioners.

      19                 Public Counsel comes before you today in this

      20       phase of the proceeding with two fairly straightforward

      21       requests.  We are asking you to say no, and then to say

      22       no again.

      23                 The first no, now that this project has

      24       reached the $1 billion spent or obligated to spend level

      25       and its prospects for a timely completion, even on the
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       1       five-year delayed schedule that PEF announced last year,

       2       appear dimmer than ever, we ask you to hold the line.

       3       Don't approve as reasonable PEF's projected expenditures

       4       that are not needed to get the combined license or COL.

       5       That's the first no.

       6                 The second no, we are also asking you to give

       7       a break to the PEF customers who are overpaying this

       8       year and let them have a deserved reduction in their

       9       bill since they overpaid based on PEF's overestimation

      10       in last year's docket.  Don't accept PEF's request to

      11       replace a $60 million overcharge with a $55 million

      12       increase in the rate management plan amortization.  That

      13       is the second no.

      14                 For three years now, ratepayers of PEF have

      15       sat helplessly by while the company, with the

      16       accommodation of the NCRC process, has become further

      17       mired in a project that has a dismal future at best,

      18       that is feasible in only the most unlikely of cases, a

      19       project with no eager joint venture -- joint owners on

      20       the horizon, and a project that without those phantom

      21       joint owners will yield unconscionable monthly bills for

      22       average customers $70 higher, if PEF still tries to

      23       build it.

      24                 Under these circumstances, the customers may

      25       well be wise today to take their billion-dollar pill,
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       1       swallow it, and be happy to avoid what could have been.

       2                 Remember that the Florida Legislature had

       3       every expectation that the utilities upon whom they

       4       bestowed this heretofore unheard of privilege of

       5       advanced cost recovery would actually build nuclear

       6       power plants, not get expensive pieces of certificates.

       7       Sure they knew that projects could be abandoned or not

       8       enter service, but they fully expected that the lessons

       9       of the past would not be repeated and that companies

      10       would use the new licensing process, new streamline

      11       design, and the benefit of hindsight to avoid the

      12       pitfalls of past failures.

      13                 So how did Progress respond to the advanced

      14       recovery legislation?  In the euphoria, they bought

      15       3,100 acres of land in Levy County, hired a relatively

      16       green, in the nuclear world, engineering firm to do site

      17       characterization work in support of an early NRC

      18       authorization, called an LWA, that would let them get a

      19       big two-year head start.  Despite the crumbling of the

      20       global economy in 2008 and in spite of a strong signal

      21       in November 2008 from the NRC about the unlikelihood of

      22       the LWA being issued, the company quickly submitted

      23       their billion-dollar obligation for long-lead materials

      24       by a hasty December 31, 2008, execution of the

      25       $7.65 billion EPC contract.
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       1                 Three weeks later, on the eve of the filing

       2       deadline for the 2009 NCRC docket, they were notified by

       3       the, that the NCR -- NRC had denied them the LWA,

       4       jeopardizing the value of that EPC contract and forcing

       5       PEF to announce a minimum two-year delay in the Levy

       6       project.  All optimism was gone at that point.  The

       7       project started on a tailspin that it has not recovered

       8       from.

       9                 On the eve of the 2010 filing, PEF announced

      10       that the two-year delay would stretch to at least five

      11       years, and they hoped to at least get to the combined

      12       license while deciding when and if to proceed.

      13                 Yes, PEF has responded impressively to

      14       minimizing the ill-fated March 2008 long-lead material

      15       procurement obligation, but that still leaves the total

      16       cost of the project at this point right at $1 billion.

      17       And that is going to be true if nothing else happens

      18       beyond the NRC issuing a license to build a ghost plant

      19       that is never to be built.

      20                 Customers will want to know why has this

      21       happened.  Although PEF can rely for explanation on the

      22       past orders from the need determination all the way

      23       through the February 2nd order in this docket -- in the

      24       NRC process and can rely on Sections 366.93 and 403.519,

      25       that will be of little consolation to these customers.
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       1       It may well be that the billion dollars is water over

       2       the dam in the legal sense, but that doesn't mean that

       3       customers should be throwing good money after bad, all

       4       for the sake of making it look like the LNP project is

       5       going to go online in 2021.

       6                 Why do we say this?  Well, the answers are

       7       found in the testimony of two feature witnesses in this

       8       case:  Dr. William Jacobs on behalf of the customers,

       9       and John Elnitsky on behalf of PEF.  Both men are

      10       nuclear engineers with impressive credentials.

      11       Dr. Jacobs has 30-plus years of experience in the

      12       nuclear -- mostly in the nuclear electric power

      13       industry, and Mr. Elnitsky has a distinguished career on

      14       behalf of his country in the nuclear Navy.  There is no

      15       dispute as to the expertise and credentials of either.

      16                 You will hear from John Elnitsky that PEF has

      17       a plan of record and that it supports the company's

      18       insistence that they possess a present intent to build

      19       Levy in 2021.

      20                 Dr. Jacobs, on the other hand, is the Georgia

      21       PSC's official monitor on the Vogtle project, and he

      22       knows what a project that is under construction looks

      23       like.  He will tell you why PEF's plan of record may

      24       have less actual realistic significance due to several

      25       factors.  He lists six, including some that you have
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       1       heard in past years, such as a lack of joint owners.

       2                 However, there is one factor that the

       3       customers ask you to take a very close look at, and that

       4       is the highly confidential scenario planning that senior

       5       executives in Progress Energy concluded on the day

       6       before last year's NCRC hearing began.  This was not a

       7       frivolous manager's team building exercise at some

       8       retreat, but a months' long process that was designed to

       9       narrow focus and choices and allow the senior executives

      10       at PEF and Progress Energy to reach a useful conclusion.

      11                 You'll be shown the results of this process in

      12       unredacted but confidential form.  Look at the way it is

      13       structured and decide if you think it supports PEF's

      14       program of record in light of all the conditions facing

      15       the company.  You have that right, you have that

      16       obligation, and you are faced with -- as you are faced

      17       with requests for new types of costs from PEF.

      18                 We are asking that the Commission recognize

      19       what the company is truly planning for, a world without

      20       Levy before 2027, if at all.  We ask that as a result of

      21       the evidence that you will hear that you exercise your

      22       oversight that the Legislature expects and authorized.

      23       Don't deem as reasonable costs not absolutely needed to

      24       obtain a COL.  That means no more land buying for

      25       transmission, no transmission studies, no more
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       1       transmission design and construction costs, no cost of

       2       full notice to proceed.

       3                 The OPC disputes that there was any Commission

       4       decision that authorized these specific costs in 2010.

       5       You did authorize a go slow COL receipt approach.  You

       6       agreed that PEF wouldn't be able to build the plant any

       7       sooner than 2021, but you didn't make any ruling that

       8       the company would actually meet that date.  And in so

       9       ruling, you didn't know that all the while PEF was

      10       taking a look at a 2027 COD, or commercial operation

      11       date, for Levy.

      12                 Other than PEF projecting costs that would be

      13       needed in the very unlikely event they would actually be

      14       trying to meet 2021 COD, these costs are speculative at

      15       best, and though relatively minor compared with the

      16       billion dollars, the customers should be spared them.

      17                 We urge that you take the initiative that the

      18       Legislature said you have in approving or disapproving

      19       unspent estimated or projected dollars as being

      20       reasonable or not.  Please say no.

      21                 Finally, as to the rate management plan, you

      22       said that PEF could collect on a five-year deferred

      23       basis $273 million plus carrying costs.  Absent the

      24       overcollection of about $61 million in 20 -- during

      25       2011, primarily related to the overestimation of
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       1       long-lead material procurement costs, the customers

       2       would be getting what the company calls in their

       3       testimony a refund.  Unfortunately, PEF wants you to let

       4       them offset this elusory refund that the customers

       5       should get by piling onto the already assumed

       6       $60 million of amortization from that rate management

       7       plan another $55 million.

       8                 We say enough is enough.  Customers are weary

       9       of shouldering costs for nuclear energy that is not

      10       being received, from CR3 to the CR3 uprates to a

      11       vanishing LNP, zero for three, and on top of that,

      12       another $55 million to cruelly snatch away the refund

      13       that they would be getting in 2012.  Again, please say

      14       no.

      15                 PEF will get their money from the rate

      16       management plan.  We ask you to make 2012 a time when

      17       customers get a little bit of a break.  Say no twice,

      18       please.  Thank you very much.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

      20                 Mr. Brew.

      21                 MR. BREW:  Thank you.  Good morning, Chairman,

      22       Commissioners.

      23                 A little background on why we are here.  PCS

      24       operates a manufacturing and mining complex on about

      25       100,000 acres in Hamilton County.  We are one of the
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       1       largest power users on the Progress Energy Florida

       2       system, and typically have requirements that are

       3       comparable to the electric needs of a city of about

       4       800 -- 80,000 people.

       5                 Most of our load is served on an interruptible

       6       basis.  That means that Progress Energy does not plan

       7       generating capacity to serve our load.  It also means

       8       that Progress can and does disrupt service to our

       9       process so that it can avoid service disruptions to

      10       thousands of other consumers and businesses.

      11                 We also have invested substantially in

      12       renewable energy.  We've invested in substantial amounts

      13       for equipment to recapture heat from our manufacturing

      14       process, which is exothermic, in order to generate about

      15       20 megawatts of energy without any incremental carbon

      16       emissions at all.

      17                 A big reason why PCS has invested in

      18       generating power from recaptured heat and agreed to take

      19       service at a lesser quality is because we operate in

      20       globally competitive commodity markets.  Given our

      21       energy intensity, competitive power prices are critical

      22       to economic competitiveness.

      23                 Now with respect to Levy, we have said from

      24       the beginning that the proposed project would be

      25       unaffordable for consumers and would only become more so
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       1       given inevitable slippages in schedule and rising costs.

       2       The expected costs, even in a best-case scenario, are

       3       too high, and Progress's customer base is too small to

       4       support an investment of this magnitude.

       5                 Now as we discussed last year, apart from the

       6       three basic stated functions of these NCRC proceedings,

       7       which are to audit the project costs, make prudence

       8       determinations, and determine ongoing long-term

       9       feasibility of completing the plant, a basic function in

      10       these dockets is to address the rate and bill impacts

      11       associated with the dollars authorized for recovery.

      12                 In the very first NCRC proceeding in 2008 the

      13       Commission approved $418 million for recovery, and then

      14       Progress later asked for and received permission to

      15       split that over a period of years.  In 2009, the

      16       Commission approved the rate management plan, which, as

      17       Mr. Rehwinkel mentioned, allowed for recovery over five

      18       years of 273 million of the 444 million that was

      19       authorized for recovery in that period.

      20                 Last year, which we spent a lot of time

      21       discussing, the company moved to its go-slow approach in

      22       large part to mitigate near-term rate impacts for

      23       consumers.

      24                 I wanted to go through these pieces of the

      25       NCRC history because the notion of rate mitigation is
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       1       soon going to disappear or change dramatically once

       2       Progress receives its construction, construction license

       3       from the NRC.  And let me explain.

       4                 It's essential to, to look at and fully take

       5       in the magnitude of the ratemaking train wreck that

       6       we're headed for.  For 2012, Progress has proposed a

       7       nuclear cost recovery factor of about $4.50 a month for

       8       the average residential customer.  Once Progress

       9       receives a COL, that factor goes up in multiples.  By

      10       2016 it's going to be four times larger -- the revenue

      11       requirement impact of proceeding with Levy is going to

      12       result in a factor that's four times larger than the

      13       proposed factor for this year.  It's five times bigger

      14       in 2017, 17 times bigger after that, and 20 -- 10 times

      15       bigger later.

      16                 In round numbers, for the years 2016 and 2020,

      17       your average residential customer is going to be paying

      18       $400 a year more to support the Levy investment.  For an

      19       energy intensive user like PCS, that amount is going to

      20       go into the millions.

      21                 Plus, at that point -- and all of this

      22       information are in the company's exhibits, there's

      23       nothing confidential about it at all -- most of the

      24       clause recovery that you're going to be asked to act on

      25       will be driven by carrying costs on construction
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       1       additions.  These will not be procurement that could be

       2       slipped or moved around.  We will be locked in.

       3       Progress will be financing billions of dollars to

       4       support the project in one year and even more in the

       5       next.

       6                 So you will not see proposals to mitigate rate

       7       impacts on consumers.  You will instead hear demands for

       8       cost recovery now, driven by cash flow requirements just

       9       to cover the interest on this massive amount of debt.

      10       On top of that, once we've already recovered $8 billion

      11       or thereabouts from consumers, you're then going to have

      12       to deal with a base rate case to add another $14 billion

      13       to rate base.

      14                 Given these frightening figures, the logical

      15       question is what can be done about it?  Well, once they

      16       start, there's only two ways to really control the cost.

      17       One is to actually lower the cost of construction.

      18       That's not going to happen.  The only other way to do it

      19       is to share those costs with other entities through

      20       joint owners.  And what we've heard over the past

      21       several years and heard today are either vague

      22       possibilities or missed opportunities.  Last year we saw

      23       that Seminole, which had originally targeted an interest

      24       in Levy, dropped that out of its Ten-Year Site Plan and

      25       decided to build peakers instead.  This month, Florida
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       1       Municipal Power Agency announced its intention to

       2       acquire a portion of the new V.C. Summer unit in South

       3       Carolina, which is also a Westinghouse AP1000 plant

       4       that's designed to go into service in 2016 and 2019, or

       5       roughly the dates that Levy was originally proposed for.

       6                 With the continuing adverse trends that are

       7       addressed in Mr. Jacobs' testimony, other folks are

       8       likely to remain on the fence or not go here at all,

       9       which leaves Progress Energy Florida customers back on

      10       the sole ownership track and bearing all of those costs.

      11                 That leads us to really another realization,

      12       that Levy, as Mr. Rehwinkel mentioned, may already be a

      13       phantom, a project for which we'll spend a billion

      14       dollars of ratepayer money to get a ticket to nowhere, a

      15       construction license for a facility that will never

      16       break ground.

      17                 Given all of this, PCS has only two requests

      18       in this year's docket.  The first, we strongly agree

      19       with OPC that the Commission, that the Commission should

      20       not approve Progress's proposal to backfill in its

      21       overspending on the, its disposition of procurement by

      22       adding $55 million to the rate management plan for the

      23       2012 factor.  Given the economy and the tenuous nature

      24       of this project, those costs should be spread out

      25       further, they shouldn't be accelerated.  And we strongly
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       1       encourage the Commission to reject that proposal.

       2                 Second, we do think that more assertive

       3       Commission action is required concerning joint

       4       ownership.  And, no, I don't mean that we're asking the

       5       Commission to get entangled in those negotiations.  But

       6       I do think the Commission needs to make clear now,

       7       before you get to the COLA, that it is not going to

       8       authorize that massive spin up in spending, absent

       9       secure joint ownership participation that will mitigate

      10       rate impacts for Florida consumers.  Once we're on that

      11       track, it's going to be, it's going to be a terrible

      12       annual battle over what to do because the costs are

      13       going to be unaffordable.

      14                 Finally, I'd like to close with a statement

      15       made by John Rowe, the retiring CEO of Exelon, the

      16       utility with the largest nuclear fleet in the country,

      17       at an American Nuclear Society conference in Hollywood,

      18       Florida, yesterday that he entitled My Last Nuclear

      19       Speech.  In his keynote address to that nuclear group,

      20       he said, "We cannot pray for the future we want and hope

      21       that it will happen.  We are a business and must make

      22       rational economic decisions based on the cold hard facts

      23       at hand.  I do not purport to know what the exact future

      24       of our sector will be, but I do know that if we don't

      25       pay attention to the grim economic facts, we, our
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       1       customers, and our shareholders will get burned."

       2                 PCS simply asks that the Commission take a

       3       cold hard look at the facts and take actions

       4       accordingly.

       5                 Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

       7                 Ms. White.

       8                 MS. WHITE:  Good morning again, Commissioners.

       9                 I'm not going to restate what I said last week

      10       about why FEA is here.  We're still here.  Although we

      11       have a somewhat smaller federal presence because it's a

      12       somewhat smaller territory, we still have the same very

      13       large concerns about the financial situation both that

      14       the project seems to be facing and also that our budgets

      15       face on a regular basis.  So we're still here and we

      16       still care very much that this project will give the

      17       benefits that were promised to customers, including the

      18       federal customers, who rely very much on this Commission

      19       to look at the, as my colleague Mr. Brew says, the cold

      20       hard facts of this case.

      21                 I thank you for your work on this.  I know

      22       that it's not an easy decision to make, and I'm glad

      23       that I'm not sitting in that chair.  So I thank you for

      24       your work on this, and that's all I have to say for this

      25       morning.  Thanks.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       2                 Mr. Moyle.

       3                 MR. MOYLE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members

       4       of the Commission.

       5                 Vicki Kaufman was here last week on behalf of

       6       FIPUG, and I just wanted to start by indicating that

       7       FIPUG, Florida Industrial Power Users Group, has a lot

       8       of companies operating in Florida that use electricity

       9       24/7.  It's a variable cost.  A lot of the companies

      10       compete in a global marketplace, as Mr. Brew said.  You

      11       know, it's a tough economy.  Things that increase costs

      12       are ones that everybody is trying to hold down.  And you

      13       have an opportunity today, I think, to send a message to

      14       Progress about what's been called a rate train wreck

      15       coming forward.  And as you hear the testimony, I would

      16       urge you to consider that.

      17                 Companies that cool groceries, big warehouse

      18       facilities that cool food that needs to be frozen,

      19       phosphate companies, companies in the pulp and paper

      20       business, cement companies, companies in the chemical

      21       business, there are a lot of users in Florida that can

      22       be severely impacted by rates that would have to be

      23       incurred should Progress move forward with this, with

      24       this effort.

      25                 You're going to hear a lot.  You have very
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       1       talented witnesses with engineering degrees.  They're

       2       going to be talking a lot about issues.  You're going to

       3       be getting into a lot of, a lot of details.  But when it

       4       really comes down to it, you know, what is this case

       5       about?  I think Mr. Elnitsky says this, and we'll talk

       6       about this, but it's really about judgment.  It's about

       7       what is the right judgment to make.  And you have facts.

       8       Progress is making a judgment currently that you are

       9       charged with reviewing.  The consumers are advocating

      10       for a judgment that is different from that sought by

      11       Progress, but ultimately it's your call, both as set

      12       forth in the statute and in your, and in your rule.

      13                 And I thought it would be instructive just to

      14       quote the rule that gives you the ability to make a

      15       judgment.  It says -- this is the nuclear cost recovery

      16       rule, 25-6.0423(5)(c)(5), but it says, "By May 1 of each

      17       year, along with required filings required by this

      18       paragraph, a utility shall submit for Commission review

      19       and approval a detailed analysis of the long-term

      20       feasibility of completing the project."

      21                 So you will have information in front of you,

      22       you'll have some detailed facts that can be measured and

      23       quantified, and then you'll also have some that are hard

      24       to measure and quantify.  They're called enterprise

      25       risk.  And we'll talk with Mr. Elnitsky about enterprise

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1379

       1       risk, and I think he'll admit that enterprise risk

       2       ultimately, you know, they're a judgment call.  And

       3       Progress is making a particular judgment.  You will have

       4       to look at the facts and decide whether, whether that is

       5       the right judgment.

       6                 The, the consumers, who Progress in its

       7       testimony says that this project is in the best interest

       8       of Progress, of the company and the customers, I think

       9       we have a little bit of a disagreement whether it's in

      10       the best interest of the customers, just given the fact

      11       that I'm the fourth lawyer representing consumers to go

      12       and express concerns about the direction this is

      13       heading.  So I think if it was truly in the best

      14       interest of customers, you may not have as many

      15       Intervenors up here raising, raising concerns with you.

      16                 But the Intervenors do have a lot of concerns,

      17       the project has a lot of uncertainty.  You're going to

      18       hear about uncertainty related to the joint ownership.

      19       We think there's price uncertainty.  We think there's

      20       timing uncertainty.  The economic conditions present a

      21       lot of uncertainties.  Progress has said, well, we're

      22       not growing like we used to.  That's a, that's a

      23       material change that I think needs to be taken into

      24       consideration.  The public support and acceptance seems

      25       to be waning.
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       1                 So, as, as we move forward with this hearing,

       2       I think you're going to hear some discussions, some

       3       facts, some evidence as to the uncertainty associated

       4       with, with this project, not the least of which is

       5       execution.  These nuclear power plants are obviously a

       6       tough thing to execute on.  We're not getting into

       7       Crystal River 3, the uprates today, but that repair has

       8       been tough to, to execute.

       9                 Mr. Burnett in his opening statement, a lawyer

      10       who I respect a great deal, talked about, well, you

      11       know, the evidence is undisputed, and the evidence will

      12       say this.  Well, with all due respect, we haven't had

      13       evidence yet.  I mean, we're having opening statements.

      14       The evidence will start coming in when people take the

      15       stand and raise their hand and they're subjected to

      16       cross-examination, and I intend to ask Mr. Elnitsky

      17       about the intent to move forward.

      18                 While he may say, yes, that's the intent, I

      19       think you'll get the sense that it's an intent with a

      20       small "i".  It's a very soft intent.  You know, they had

      21       to make a decision about, well, what do we do with this

      22       thing?  Do we, do we, you know, cancel it, do we move

      23       full speed ahead, or do we sort of take a middle ground

      24       and suspend it and kind of see how it goes?  And they,

      25       they selected the middle ground or suspending it.  Well,
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       1       you know, it'll be interesting to see how you make, how

       2       you reconcile a decision to suspend with intent to move

       3       forward.

       4                 We think, the consumers think that there's an

       5       opportunity for you all to send a signal to Progress

       6       that this path that they're heading down is treacherous,

       7       it's difficult, it's going to have a real negative

       8       impact on consumers.  And rather than just kicking the

       9       nuclear can down the road, we would hope that you all

      10       would take this opportunity, after hearing the evidence

      11       about all of the uncertainties, about the impacts on

      12       ratepayers going forward, that you would send a strong

      13       signal to, to them that maybe, maybe their judgment is

      14       not 100% spot on with respect to the, to the Levy

      15       nuclear, nuclear plant.

      16                 So thank you for the opportunity to share,

      17       share those thoughts with you.

      18                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr. Moyle.

      19                 Mr. Whitlock.

      20                 MR. WHITLOCK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

      21       members of the Commission.

      22                 Progress stands before the Commission today

      23       requesting advanced cost recovery from its ratepayers,

      24       neighborhood of about $135 million, in addition to the

      25       hundred of millions that it's already recovered, for its
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       1       proposed Levy nuclear project, a project that, due to

       2       the ever increasing uncertainty and risks that are

       3       associated with new nuclear -- with the development of

       4       new nuclear generation, the cold facts, as I think

       5       Mr. Brew referred to this uncertainty and risk as, but

       6       what -- the problem is, is that Progress is in violation

       7       of two Commission-established canons, for lack of a

       8       better word, of ratepayer protection.

       9                 The first, Mr. Moyle just talked about,

      10       long-term feasibility.  The Commission has to review and

      11       approve the long-term feasibility analysis that Progress

      12       has submitted this year.  And based on that analysis, on

      13       its face, despite what Progress might conclude from it,

      14       the Levy nuclear project is not feasible of being

      15       completed in the long term.  And, again, that's

      16       evidenced by their own feasibility analysis, and I think

      17       that'll come out in the evidence.

      18                 The second canon that Progress is in

      19       noncompliance with of ratepayer protection is the

      20       statute -- is the intent to construct.  And I talked

      21       about this in detail in my, my opening last week with

      22       FPL and won't revisit it, but PEF simply has not met its

      23       burden to demonstrate that it actually intends to ever

      24       construct the LNP.  It might say it does, but I'd ask

      25       you to listen to the evidence.
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       1                 The fact that Progress is in noncompliance

       2       with these, with these requirements probably comes as

       3       little surprise to the Commission.  It certainly is no

       4       surprise to the Intervenors, as Mr. Rehwinkel discussed

       5       in some detail.  The Levy nuclear project has been

       6       fraught with, with problems and schedule slippages,

       7       delays, and corresponding cost increases ever since the

       8       Commission issued an affirmative determination of need

       9       for the project.

      10                 So, based on this lack of showing of long-term

      11       feasibility as well as the lack of a real demonstrated

      12       intent to actually construct the Levy nuclear project,

      13       both of which are required by the Commission to protect

      14       the ratepayers, I would respectfully submit that this is

      15       the year the Commission needs to put an end to the

      16       bleeding of the Progress ratepayers, to hold the line,

      17       as I think Mr. Rehwinkel said.  These ratepayers are

      18       unfairly, unjustly, and unreasonably being asked to pay

      19       to preserve an option, not a certainty, the option that

      20       this plant might be built one day.  It's not a

      21       certainty.  And, in fact, for the past couple of years

      22       they've been asked to pay hundreds of millions of

      23       dollars for nothing more than a piece of paper from the

      24       NRC.

      25                 The Commission can do this and should do this

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                      1384

       1       by denying any further cost recovery relating to the

       2       Levy nuclear project for 2011 or 2012 or, at the very

       3       least, limiting cost recovery to what is absolutely

       4       necessary for Progress to support the possible issuance

       5       of a combined operating license from the NRC.

       6                 Going back to the first canon of ratepayer

       7       protection, I'm not going to read the rule, Mr. Moyle

       8       just did that, on long-term feasibility.  In Order

       9       Number PSC-08-0518, the Commission, after setting out

      10       specific, specific guidance for what Progress needs to

      11       do to demonstrate long-term feasibility, stated, "We

      12       will review the continued feasibility of Levy units

      13       1 and 2 during the annual nuclear cost recovery

      14       proceedings, thus providing the appropriate checks and

      15       balances to ensure that the construction of the nuclear

      16       units continues to be in the best interest of PEF's

      17       ratepayers."

      18                 PEF's feasibility analysis submitted this year

      19       does not show the construction of the LNP, or perhaps

      20       more aptly the continued pursuit of their combined

      21       operating license -- there's very little talk about

      22       construction -- continues to be in the best interest of

      23       Progress ratepayers.  From a qualitative perspective,

      24       all of the major enterprise risks are trending

      25       unfavorably for Progress.  Their demand is down, there's
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       1       no cost of carbon, there's no greenhouse gas

       2       legislation, the price of natural gas is extremely

       3       depressed, and there's just simply not the robust public

       4       or the robust policy support that's necessary for the

       5       development of new nuclear generation.

       6                 Quantitatively, Progress's updated CPVR shows

       7       nuclear being cost-effective only in the most unlikely

       8       combination of projected scenarios, such as scenarios

       9       combining a high cost of carbon and a high, and a high

      10       cost of natural gas.  That's not the reality today.  And

      11       even in the scenarios where it is -- in these scenarios

      12       where it is shown as cost-effective, it's still trending

      13       unfavorably from past CPVRRs submitted by Progress, and

      14       I would ask that the Commission look at those trends and

      15       consider them.

      16                 In regards to the second canon of ratepayer

      17       protection, the intent to actually construct the LNP.

      18       This intent must be evidenced by more than just empty

      19       statements; it must be backed up by the evidence.  As

      20       Mr. Moyle said, it's an intent with a small "i", and I

      21       think you'll get that out of Mr. Elnitsky's testimony.

      22                 PEF simply has not met the standard to

      23       demonstrate the intent to actually construct the Levy

      24       nuclear project, and therefore they're not even eligible

      25       for cost recovery under Section 366.93 of the Florida
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       1       Statutes, as determined by the Commission last year.

       2                 Much like FPL, as we talked about last year,

       3       the only thing that Progress has demonstrated an intent

       4       to do is to try and obtain a COL and create the option

       5       to construct the Levy nuclear project.

       6                 It's not a matter of when to build, it's a

       7       matter of whether to build.  And this distinction is

       8       crucial to the Commission's determination of whether or

       9       not PEF has the intent to actually build the LNP.

      10       You'll hear a lot about their present intent, their

      11       program of record, but this must be considered in light

      12       of the fact that it's an issue of whether to build, not

      13       when to build.

      14                 So in conclusion, it's time for the Commission

      15       to rein in spending on the Levy nuclear project.  While

      16       Progress apparently would like to think so, statutory

      17       and regulatory scheme for advanced cost recovery in

      18       Florida does not create -- provide a blank check for the

      19       utility.  And until the Commission sends a strong signal

      20       to Progress, its ratepayers are the ones who are going

      21       to continue to bear the burden of paying for a project

      22       that is not feasible and one that, that Progress has not

      23       demonstrated a real intent to actually construct.

      24                 Put simply, they've not met the requirements

      25       of the statute or the rule.  And as a result, the
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       1       Commission should deny all further cost recovery

       2       relating to the Levy nuclear project, or again, at the

       3       very least, limit that recovery to what the ratepayers

       4       are actually paying for, and that's a piece of paper

       5       from the NRC.  Thank you.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you all for your

       7       opening statements.

       8                 Mr. Young, we have a list of things that need

       9       to be entered.

      10                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.  The first Staff would

      11       like to enter is exhibits, the Staff exhibits on the,

      12       and it's Numbers 174 through 182 on the Comprehensive

      13       Exhibit List.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter 174 through

      15       182 into the record, if there's no objections.  Seeing

      16       none.

      17                 (Exhibits 174 through 182 admitted into

      18       evidence.)

      19                 MR. YOUNG:  And I think this is the

      20       appropriate time to enter the Witnesses Garrett,

      21       Henderson [sic] direct testimony into the record, if --

      22                 MS. HUHTA:  Yes.  Will Garrett was the first

      23       witness listed in the Prehearing Order, and he has been

      24       stipulated based on the stipulation we discussed

      25       earlier.  We would move that Mr. Will Garrett's
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       1       March 1st, 2011, direct testimony be entered into the

       2       record as though read, as well as his Exhibits WG-1,

       3       WG-2, WG-3, which are Staff comprehensive exhibits 135,

       4       136, and 137.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do I hear any objections to

       6       that?  No.  So we will enter Mr. Garrett's testimony

       7       into the record as though read.  And we'll also enter

       8       Exhibits 135, 36, 37 into the record.

       9                 (Exhibits 135, 136, and 137 admitted into

      10       evidence.)

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, at this time I think

       2       for, for the record, Exhibits Numbers 138, 139, 140,

       3       141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, and 148 will not be

       4       entered into the record.  Am I correct?

       5                 MS. HUHTA:  I believe that that is incorrect.

       6       Mr. Franke's March 1st, 2011, testimony will be entered

       7       into the record, so that will be his Exhibits 138

       8       through 144.

       9                 MR. YOUNG:  Okay.

      10                 MS. HUHTA:  Mr. Franke's Exhibits 145 through

      11       148 on the Comprehensive Exhibit List will not be

      12       entered into the record.  So if I may proceed with that,

      13       Mr. Young?

      14                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, ma'am.

      15                 MS. HUHTA:  Thank you.

      16                 Chairman, we would move that Jon Franke's

      17       March 1st, 2011, testimony be entered into the record as

      18       though read, along with his Exhibits JF-1 through JF-7.

      19       Those are Staff comprehensive exhibits 138 through 144.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do we have any objections to

      21       those?  Seeing none, we will enter Mr. Franke's

      22       testimony into the record as though read.  And we'll

      23       also enter Exhibits 138, 39, 40, 41, 42, 43, and 44 into

      24       the record.

      25                 (Exhibits 138, 139, 140, 141, 142, 143, and
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       1       144 admitted into evidence.)

       2
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       1                 MS. HUHTA:  Finally, I believe we have

       2       Ms. Hardison, who is also part of the stipulation.  We

       3       would move that her March 1st, 2011, testimony as well

       4       as her May 2nd, 2011, testimony be entered into the

       5       record as though read.  And Ms. Hardison has no

       6       exhibits.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Ms. Hardison's

       8       March 31 -- I'm sorry, March 1st and May 2nd testimony

       9       into the record as though read.

      10

      11

      12
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       1                 MS. HUHTA:  Progress's next witness is

       2       Mr. Thomas G. Foster, and based on stipulation of the

       3       parties, we're going to take up his direct and rebuttal

       4       at the same time, but he will not be excused until

       5       Mr. Elnitsky's direct testimony is complete.  And

       6       Mr. Foster has not been sworn, Chairman.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Are we going to, or have

       8       we -- we've already entered Coston and Carpenter?

       9                 MR. YOUNG:  Mr. Chairman, he will be taken

      10       up -- well, I guess we can do it right now.

      11                 At this time Staff would request that Mr. --

      12       the prefiled direct testimony of William Tripp Coston

      13       and Kevin Carpenter be entered into the record as though

      14       read.  Also, the pre, that's, also his exhibits, their

      15       joint prefiled exhibits be entered into the record, and

      16       that's Number 171.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We'll enter Coston

      18       and Carpenter direct testimony into the record as though

      19       read today.  And Exhibit 171.

      20                 (Exhibit 171 admitted into evidence.)

      21

      22

      23
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And since we're here, could

       2       we also take Jeffery Small's?

       3                 MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.

       4                 Also at this time, Mr. Chairman, Staff would

       5       request that the prefiled direct testimony of Jeffery A.

       6       Small be entered into the record as though read, and his

       7       exhibits be entered into the record, and those are

       8       Numbers 172 and 173.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any objections for those

      10       exhibits?  Okay.  We will enter Mr. Small's record --

      11       testimony into the record as though read today and

      12       Exhibits 172 and 173.

      13                 (Exhibits 172 and 173 admitted into evidence.)
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       1                 (Transcript continues in sequence with Volume

       2       10.)
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